
Tracey Wakeford 

From: Steven Head 
Sent: 
To: 

Wednesday, 7 October 2020 2:18 PM 
Tracey Wakeford 

Subject: 
Attachments: 

Fw: Stronger Communities Funding 
28062018144018-0001 .pdf 

Steven Head 
General Maniager I Office of the General Manager I Hornsby Shire Council 
p 
e · w hornsby_nsw.gov.au If facebook_com/HornsbyCouncil 

Council acknowledges the traditional owners of the lands of Hornsby Shire, the Darug and Guringai peoples. 

From: Tim Hurst 
Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2018 2:46 PM 
To: Gary Bensley 
Cc: Steven Head 
Subject: RE: Stronger Communities Funding 

Christine Cole 

Thanks Gary- please find attached a copy of the executed agreement for your records. My finance team tells me 
the funds may be able to be t ransferred today, but if not they w ill be transferred tomorrow. 

Regards 
Tim. 

Tim Hurst 
Acting Chief Executive 
Office of Local Government I Locked Bag 3015, Nowra NSW 2541 

Office of 
NSW Local Government 

From: Gary Bensley -

Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2018 2:14 PM 
To: Tim Hurst 
Cc: Steven Head 
Subject: FW: Stronger Communities Funding 

Tim 

Thanks for your clarifying email below. 

Christine Cole 
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The Stronger Communities Fund Funding Agreement signed by Steven Head as Council's General Manager is now 
attached. 

If you require anything further, please let Steven or I know. 

Thanks 

Gary Bensley 
Deputy General Manager I Corporate Support I Hornsby Shire Council 
p 
e I w hornsby.nsw.gov.au If facebook.com/HornsbyCouncil 

Council acknowledges the traditional owners of the lands of Hornsby Shire, the Darug and Guringai people. 

From: Steven Head 
Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2018 1:00 PM 
To: Gary Bensley 
Subject: Fwd: Stronger Communities Funding 

Sent from my iPad 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Tim Hurst 
Date: 28 June 2018 at 10:28:45 am AEST 
To: Steven Head 
Subject: RE: Stronger Communities Funding 

Hi Steven - I think you might be referring to the dates specified in the Guidelines at 
Attachment 2 (which apply to all councils who access funding under the program) and the 
different dates in the funding agreement (which is specific to this application from Hornsby 
Council). The Guidelines contemplate at Item 8 that that different timeframes can be 
specified in a Funding Agreement - "Timeframes for any future funding rounds will be as 
determined within the Funding Agreement". In this case the timeframes in the Funding 
Agreement are the relevant dates and replace those in the Guidelines. 
I look forward to receiving the signed Funding Agreement as soon as possible. 
Regards 
Tim. 

-----Original Message----­
From: Steven Head 
Sent: Thursday, 28 June ·,wus 10:us AM 
To: Tim Hurst 
Subject: Re: Stronger Communities Funding 

Good morning Tim 

Thank you for getting the offer of grant funds to Council last night in time to be able to brief 
the Councillors. The feedback was positive. 

We have been through the paperwork this morning and we are generally okay with it. The 
main issue appears to be that the various attachments aren't all consistent in terms of the final 
acquittal of the project. Could I ask that your team review and correct these so that they are 
all consistent with the actual application and we will be able to immediately sign and return 
the documentation. I would like to have the revised documents signed and back to you early 
this afternoon to allow you to get the funds transferred by tomorrow. 
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Don't hesitate to contact me should you need to discuss 

Regards 

Steven Head 

General Manager 
Hornsby Shire Council 
Sent from my iPad 

On 27 Jun 2018, at 5:00 pm, Tim Hurst 

Please find attached the funding agreement as discussed. 

Regards 

Tim. 

· wrote: 

This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain 
confidential information. If you are not the intended recipient, please delete it 
and notify the sender. Views expressed in this message are those of the 
individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of the Office of Local 
Government, unless otherwise stated. 

For the purposes of the Copyright Act, the permission of the holder of 
copyright in this communication may be taken to have been granted, unless 
stated otherwise, for the copying or forwarding of this message, as long as 
both the content of this communication and the purposes for which it is copied 
or forwarded are work-related. 

This email has been scanned for viruses by the Symantec Email 
Security. cloud service. 

For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com 

<27062018165446-0001.pdf> 

<A599743 - OLG - Hornsby - New Council Implementation Fund (NCIF) and 
Stronger Communities Fund (SCF) - Round 2 - 2018 - Funding Agreement 
(A600619).docx> 
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This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain confidential information. 
If you are not the intended recipient, please delete it and notify the sender. Views expressed 
in this message are those of the individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of the 
Office of Local Government, unless otherwise stated. 

For the purposes of the Copyright Act, the permission of the holder of copyright in this 
communication may be taken to have been granted, unless stated otherwise, for the copying 
or forwarding of this message, as long as both the content of this communication and the 
purposes for which it is copied or forwarded are work-related. 

This email has been scanned for viruses by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service. 
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com 

This message is intended for the addressee named and may contain confidential information. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please delete it and notify the sender. Views expressed in this message are those of the 
individual sender, and are not necessarily the views of the Office of Local Government, unless otherwise stated. 

For the purposes of the Copyright Act, the permission of the holder of copyright in this communication may be taken 
to have been granted, unless stated otherwise, for the copying or forwarding of this message, as long as both the 
content of this communication and the purposes for which it is copied or forwarded are work-related. 

This email has been scanned for viruses by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service. 
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud .com 
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DEED 

BETWEEN 

AND 

.,,~. ~,1,.;. 
NSw 
GOVERNMENT 

Office of 
Local Government 

STRONGER COMMUNITIES FUND 

FUNDING AGREEMENT 

;2-1(~ ~y 
Name The Chief Executive, Office of Local Government for and 

on behalf of the Crown in right of the State of New South 
Wales (OLG) 

A.B.N 44 913 630 046 

Address Locked Bag 3015, 

Nowra, NSW 2541 

Fax: 

Email: 

Name The Council described in Item 1 of Attach·ment 1 

Office of Local Government New Counc~ Funding Agreement 2018 1 



Background 
• In conjunction with the NSW Government's announcement in May 2016 to create 

new councils across the State, the Government has established two funds being 
the Stronger Communities Fund (SCF) and the New Council Implementation 
Fund (NCIF). 

• In September 2017 the NSW Government agreed to provide additional funding 
support to new councils for community infrastructure projects through the 
Stronger Communities Fund - Tied Grants program. 

• The Stronger Communities Fund will provide funding for specific projects, 
identified by the NSW Government, within the new councils and to councils 
previously subject to a merger proposal. 

• The New Council Implementation Fund has been established by the NSW 
Government to cover the up-front costs of implementing · the new council, 
enabling councils to invest savings directly into community benefits at the earliest 
opportunity. 

• OLG has the function of providing funding to Councils and it is the Agency of the 
State to which the Council will report regarding the expenditure of funds provided 
to the Council. 

• The Council agrees to accept the Funding set out in this Agreement in 
accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

Operative Provisions 

1. Request for Grant Funding 

1.1 Funding_ Request: In consideration for the submission of the completed Grant 
Application Form being Attachment 1, Council agrees to accept and apply the 
funds provided by OLG (the Funding) in accordance with and subject to the 
terms of this Agreement. 

1.2 Guidelines: Council agrees to at all times comply with the Guidelines issued by 
the NSW Government being the: 

(a) Stronger Communities Fund Grants Guidelines (Attachment 2), and 

(b) Funding Acknowledgment Guidelines for Recipients of NSW Government 
Grants (which can be found at): 
https://communications.dpc.nsw.gov.au/assets/dpc-nsw-gov­
au/files/Communications-and-Engagement/fa6fd6d77a/Funding­
Acknowledgernent-Guidelines-for-Recipients-of-NSW-Government­
Grants.pdf 

all as amended from time to time (the relevant Guidelines). 

Office of Local Government New Council Funding Agreement 2018 2 



2. Payment 

2. 1 Payment: Subject to this Agreement, OLG shall pay the Grant Funds to Council 
upon receipt of the Grant Form duly executed by the Council. 

2.2 Grant Form: The Council shall complete and deliver to OLG the Grant Form 
Attachment 1. This Agreement shall be binding on the Council from the date the 
Grant Form is delivered to OLG. 

2.3 Tax Invoice: OLG will provide a recipient created Tax Invoice. 

2.4 Default: OLG will not be in default of its obligation to pay the Funding if it is paid 
within 30 days of OLG receiving all necessary requirements from the Council. 

3. GST: 

3.1 Supply is GST exclusive: Unless otherwise indicated, all consideration for any 
supply under this Agreement is exclusive of any GST imposed in relation to the 
supply. 

3.2 What happens if GST is imposed: If: 

(a) Despite any other provision of this Agreement, GST is imposed on any 
supply by Council to OLG under this Agreement, and 

(b) OLG are or will be entitled to receive an input tax credit (as defined in the 
GST Law) in relation to that supply. 

OLG will pay to Council an additional amount equal to the GST imposed on that 
supply at the time and in the manner OLG determines is suitable in relation to 
that supply. 

3.3 Council must be GST registered: Council must be registered under the GST 
Law at the time of making any supply under this Agreement on which GST is 
imposed. 

3.4 Consequences of non-registration: If Council is not registered under the 
GST Law as required under clause 3.3 then the Council will not be entitled to 
receive any additional amount as provided under this clause 3 (GST). 

3.5 If OLG pay Council too much: If for any reason OLG pays to Council an 
amount under this clause 3 (GST) which is more than the GST imposed on the 
supply, Council must repay the excess to OLG on demand and if not paid OLG 
may set off the excess against any other amounts due to Council. 

Office of Local Government New Council Funding Agreement 2018 3 



4. How Council must deal with the Grant Funding 

4.1 Use of Funding: Council must 

(a) use the Funding solely for the purposes set out in the Grant Form and as 
authorised by the relevant Guidelines, 

(b) only use the Funding within the Funding Period, 

. (c) not enter into any arrangements or commitments in relation to the Grant 
Funding that are incompatible or inconsistent with the relevant Guidelines, 
and 

(d) fully acquit the funding by 30 June 2022. 

4.2 Unspent Funding: 

(a) Any unspent or uncommitted funds held by Council at 31 December 2022 
must be returned to OLG by 31 March 2023, 

(b) Council may request to extend this timeframe, and 

(c) OLG may approve or reject that request in OLG's absolute discretion. 

4.3 Bank account: Council must ensure that at all times it can demonstrate to the 
satisfaction of OLG that adequate internal financial controls are in place within 
the existing Council banking accounts for the identification of the Funding. 

4.4 Interest: The Funding must be paid into an interest earning account and 

(a) unless otherwise agreed by OLG, all interest earned on the Funding must 
be added to the balance of the Fund and be used by Council for the 
Project only in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

(b) the Funding is to be accounted for separately and funds should be 
reported as an internally restricted asset within Councils financial 
statements. 

5. Expenditure of the Funding 

5.1 Expenditure of Funding: Council is responsible for the expenditure of the 
Grant Funds. Council agrees to administer the Grant Funding in accordance 
with: 

(a) the project described in the Grant Form, 

(b) the relevant Guidelines, 

(c) information provided to OLG through the notification process defined in the 
relevant Guidelines, and 

Office of Local Government New Council Funding Agreement 2018 4 



(d) any reasonable directions given by OLG from time to time regarding the 
expenditure of the Funding. 

5.2 Sub-contractors: The Council may sub-contract all or part of the delivery of 
projects benefited by Grant Funding to a sub-contractor (including a project 
partner); but Council: 

(a) Will remain responsible for ensuring the suitability of any sub-contractor 
(or project partner) for the work proposed to be carried out by them, 

(b) Will ensure that all work carried out by a sub-contractor meets the 
requirements of this Agreement, and 

(c) Acknowledges that Council is not relieved from any of Council obligations 
or liabilities under this Agreement. 

5.3 Any funding shortfall or funding for ongoing operational activity will be funded by 
the Council 

6. Accountability 

6.1 Records: Council must: 

(a) ensure that adequate operational records and registers are kept and 
maintained concerning decisions made regarding the expenditure of Grant 
Funding, 

(b) ensure that Council keep financial records concerning the expenditure of 
Grant funding, in accordance with section 412(1) of the Local Government 
Act 1993, 

(c) retain the records referred to in this clause 7 throughout the Funding 
Period and for seven (7) years after the date that is the earlier of the date 
of expiry of the Funding Period or termination of this Agreement. 

6.2 Accountability: Council is accountable for all of the Grant Funding Council 
receives under this Agreement. 

6.3 Inspection: Council must permit OLG, or any person authorised by OLG, upon 
reasonable notice (at least 48 hours) and at any reasonable time, to inspect the 
records relating to the implementation of the Grant Funding and any project 
benefiting from the Funding. 

6.4 Non compliance with Agreement: If at any time OLG considers that the 
Funding is not being expended by Council in accordance with the provisions of 
this Agreement, or the relevant Guidelines, then OLG may require Council to 
take such steps or make such changes as may be specified in writing by OLG 
and served on Council. 
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6.5 Nothing in this Agreement prevents the Minister for Local Government or the 
Chief Executive of OLG from exercising powers available to them under the 
Local Government Act 1993. 

7. Reports 

Required reports Council will submit to OLG the Reports within the timeframe 
stipulated by the Guidelines, and any other information that may be necessary 
to establish to OLG satisfaction that the terms of this Agreement have been or 
are being satisfied by Council. 

These include, but are not limited to: 

a) By 22 December 2018, council's plan for the delivery of all projects the 
subject of the funding (the Delivery Plan). The Delivery Plan is to include 
information on governance arrangements, costings, timeframes and 
expected benefits. 

b) Council is to table progress reports at least quarterly to an ordinary council 
meeting. The progress report is to include· the expenditure and outcomes 
achieved against the Delivery Plan. This reporting is to continue until the 
conclusion of the project. 

c) Council must provide a six monthly report each year by the 31 August and 
28 February, to the OLG on the delivery progress and expenditure of the 
Funding. 

d) A final report is to be submitted upon the completion of each project the 
subject of the Funding. The final report is to include photographs and 
details ofthe benefits and outcomes achieved as well as a report against 
the Delivery Plan. 

8. Publicity 

8.1 Acknowledgement: Council will ensure that all public statements relating to 
any project the subject of the Funding will acknowledge the provision of the 
Funding by the NSW Government and that it will incorporate the terms set out in 
Item 5 of Attachment 1. 

8.2 OLG right to publicise: OLG and other agencies of the NSW Government 
may publicise the provision of the Funding, including: 

(a) The Council name, 

(b) The name of any End Recipient, 

(c) The amount of the Funding, and 

(d) The title, a brief description and images of any project benefiting from the 
Funding. 
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8.3 Acknowledgement of NSW Government Funding: Council will abide by the 
following: 

(a) Acknowledge the NSW Government's contribution in any written material 
in relation to the project and in any permanent signage in relation to any 
projects funded, 

(b) Use the NSW Government logo in accordance with the Funding 
Acknowledgement Guidelines for Recipients of NSW Government Grants 
in any publicity provisions of any kind (including any brochures, signage, 
advertising and invitations), and 

(c) Issue an invitation to the relevant State Government MP to any launch or 
public event associated with the funding and that where they are able to 
attend, they are acknowledged as official guests. Where practicable, they 
should be afforded the courtesy of publicly addressing the event and 
opening any facility. 

9. Changes to Arrangements 

9.1 Written agreement between Council and OLG must be obtained for any 
variation to this agreement. 

10. Compliance with law 

10.1 Council must: 

(a) comply with all applicable standards, laws, regulations policies and 
statements, 

(b) not do anything that would cause OLG to breach its obligations under any 
legislation, and 

(c) hold all rights, licences and consents required to conduct the Project and 
otherwise fulfil Council obligations under this Agreement. 

11. Indemnity 

11.1 Council Indemnity: Council shall at all times indemnify, hold harmless and 
defend OLG and its officers, employees and agents ("those indemnified") from 
and against liability or loss (including reasonable legal costs and expenses), 
which may be suffered or incurred by any of those indemnified by reason of or 
in connection with : 

(a) any infringement or alleged inf~ingement of any Intellectual Property 
(including Moral Rights) arising from the activities of the Project other than 
any Intellectual Property supplied by OLG, and 
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(b) any unlawful, wrongful, wilful or negligent act or omission of You or Your 
officers, employees, agents, contractors and volunteers. 

11.2 Reduction of Indemnity: Council liability to indemnify those indemnified under 
this Agreement shall be reduced proportionally to the extent that any unlawful, 
wrongful, wilful or negligent act or omission of those indemnified caused or 
contributed to the liability or loss. 

11.3 Continuing Obligation: The indemnity in this clause is a continuing obligation 
of Council separate and independent of any of Councils other responsibilities · 
and will continue beyond the termination of this Agreement. 

12. When the Funding Period ends 

12.1 Delivery of Reports and Return of Confidential Information: 

Council must provide to OLG: 

(a) All final reports due to OLG under the relevant Guidelines or otherwise 
requested by OLG, and 

(b) Deliver to OLG the Acquittal Certificate in the form supplied as 
Attachment 3. 

(c) The Project Funding period will end upon the submission of an Acquittal 
Certificate acceptable to OLG. 

12.2 No entitlement to further payment: For the avoidance of doubt, upon the 
expiration of the Funding Period, Council will not be entitled to any further 
payments under this Agreement notwithstanding that the amount paid to 
Council at that time is less than the Funding specified in this Agreement. 

13. Miscellaneous 

13.1 This Agreement: Where used means these terms and the Grant Form 
Attachment 1 duly completed. 

13.2 Change of contact details: Council must inform OLG within seven (7) days of 
any material change to the Council contact details set out in Item 1 of the 
Attachment 1 . 

13.3 Notice Requirements: A notice under this Agreement must be: 

(a) in writing, directed to the representative of the other party, and 

(b) be forwarded to the address, facsimile number or the email address of that 
representative, 

( c) if to OLG sent to the address set out on the front page of this agreement, 
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(d) if to the Council to the address as set out in Item 1 of Attachment 1. 

13.4 When a notice is served: A notice under this Agreement will be deemed to be 
served: 

(a) in the case of delivery in person - when delivered to the recipient's 
address for service and a signature received as evidence of delivery, 

(b) in the case of delivery by post - within three (3) Business Days of posting, 

(c) in the case of delivery by facsimile - at the time of dispatch if the sender 
receives a transmission report which confirms that the facsimile was sent 
in its entirety to the facsimile number of the recipient, or 

(d) in the case of delivery by email - on receipt of confirmation by the sender 
that the recipient has received the email. 

13.5 Delivery late in the day: Notwithstanding the provisions of this clause 12 
(Notices), if delivery or receipt of a communication is on a day which is not a 
Business Day in the place to which the communication is sent or is later than 
5pm (local time in that place) it will be deemed to have been duly given or made 
at 9am (local time in that place) on the next Business Day in that place. 

13.6 Applicable law: This Agreement is governed by, and must be construed in 
accordance with, the laws in force in the State of New South Wales. 

13.7 Governing jurisdiction: Council and OLG submit to the exclusive jurisdiction 
of the Courts exercising jurisdiction in the State of New South Wales and the 
courts of appeal therefrom. 

13.8 Relationship: 

(a) Nothing in this Agreement is intended to create a partnership, joint venture 
or agency relationship between the parties, 

(b) You shall not hold yourself out to be an employee, partner, agent or 
representative of OLG. 
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EXECUTED AS A DEED by OLG on _d_�-;f.a-/ut-_U_i,�\�.J2.-. ____ 2018.

u 

-n rt\ Ll 111'"( \.{ V ( 'ST
) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . .

(Chief Executive) 

Executed by OLG by the Chief Executive 
of the Office of Local Government for 
and on behalf of the Crown in right of 
New South Wales but not so as to incur 
any personal liability: ) ................... ·········'·················· 

in the presence of: 

.... � .17?.nf.. 0 4.e.,4n� ........... . 
(Witness na� ) 

(Signature) 

Office of Local Government New Council Funding Agreement 2018 
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) 

) 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

GRANT APPLICATION FORM 
This attachment forms part of the Funding Agreement 

between OLG and The Council of the Shire of Hornsby 

Item 1 

Council: 

Council Details 

Mr Steven Head 
General Manager 
The Council of the Shire of Hornsby 
PO Box 37 
HORNSBY NSW 1630 

Item 2 Approved Project(s) 

Project- Stronger Communities Fund 

Hornsby Quarry 

Westleigh Recreational Area 

Item 3 Funding Period 

End date: 30 June 2022 

Item ·4 Grant Funding 

Funding Sought: 

Stronger Communities Funding: 

Total Amount of Grant Funding sought: 

Item 5 Publicity 

Additional terms: 

$90,000,000 

$90,000,000 

Allocation 

($'000) 

50,000 

40,000 

90,000 

Council must ensure that the following wording appears on all Funding Project 
Materials: 

Item 6 

(a) "Funded by NSW Government through the Stronger Communities Fund", or 
where applicable 

(b) "Funded by NSW Government through the New Council Implementation 
Fund". 

Insurance 

Insurance policies: By signing the Application form Council confirms that it holds: 
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(a) adequate broad form public liability insurance to cover, as a minimum, all of 
Council obligations and liabilities under this Agreement, and 

(b) workers' compensation insurance in accordance with applicable legislation 
in respect of all of Council employees. 
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.2,~ J± .. A_ ~ EXECUTED AS A DEED by Council on ___ v..__.,_--_v _____ 2018. 

Signed on behalf of the Council by its ) 
General Manager Pursuant to Authority ) 

Delegated by the Council ) 

In the presence of: 

(Name of Witness) 

0 • • • o. • 0 o ; • • • • o o •, o • , ,, • • • • • o o o o , 0 o o o & 0 I • 0 Io O o o 

(signature of Witness) 

) 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

) 

(Name of Interim/General Manager) 

(signature ) 

,..._ .. ., _____ .. __ ~- --- ·- --.. .......----.. ,...- - ,-·...--,.-
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ATTACHMENT 2 

Stronger Communities Fund Grants Guidelines 

STRONGER COMMUNITIES FUND GUIDELINES-TIED 
GRANT ROUND 

1. Purpose of the Stronger Communities Fund 

The Stronger Communities Fund was established by the NSW Government to provide 
new councils with funding for the delivery of projects that improve community 
infrastructure and services. 

The first round of the Stronger Communities Fund has been utilised by communities and 
councils providing up to $15 million for each new council to kick start delivery of priority 
community initiatives. 

The tied grant round of the Stronger Communities Fund will provide funding for specific 
projects, identified by the NSW Government, within the new councils and to councils 
previously subject to a merger proposal. 

2. Purpose of these Guidelines 

These Guidelines have been developed to assist councils to understand their 
obligations in relation to the tied grant round of the Stronger Communities Fund, 
including requirements for governance and reporting. 

3. Available funding 

Stronger Communities tied grants will be provided to new councils created in 2016 and 
councils previously subject to a merger proposal. Funding will be allocated by the NSW 
Government based on priorities identified by the NSW Government. 

4. How the Stronger Communities Fund can be spent? 

Funds will be required to be spent on identified projects. Any funding shortfall or funding 
for ongoing operational activity will be funded by the council. 

Councils are responsible for implementing projects, consistent with these Guidelines. 

5. Variation of identified projects 

Any application by the Council to vary th~ projects to be funded or for the purpose of the 
tied grant will be considered on case by case basis. Any proposal to vary or modify the 
tied grant shall be made to the Minister for Local Government. 

6. Criteria for selecting projects 

Councils are to fund projects, identified by the NSW Government, that deliver new or 
improved infrastructure or services to the community. 
Projects must meet the following criteria: 

• demonstrate social and/or economic benefits to the community; and 
• give consideration to the processes and procedures outlined in the capital 

expenditure review guidelines issued by the Office of Local Government. 
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7. What are ineligible activities? 

The Stronger Communities Fund is not to be used for: 
• implementation costs of the new council such information technology systems, 

financial management systems or change management programs; 
• costs associated with the preparation for or legal challenges to merger 

proposals; 
• upgrading of council's administration buildings; or 
• ongoing staff or operational costs. 

8. Accountability and acquittal of funds 

Councils will be responsible for the effective governance of the Stronger Communities 
Fund and will be required to use a project management framework that supports the 
delivery of projects. 

The Stronger Communities Fund is to be spent or committed by 31 December 2019 and 
all funding acquitted before 30 June 2020. Timeframes for any future funding rounds will 
be as determined within the Funding Agreement. 

Councils are accountable for the expenditure of the Stronger Communities Fund in 
accordance with these guidelines, which require the following: 

• The Office of Local Government will prepare a funding agreement to provide 
Stronger Community funds to councils, including agreement to undertake the 
necessary projects. 

• On signing of the funding agreement and submission of an invoice, the OLG will 
provide the funds to councils. 

• By December 2018, councils are to notify the OLG of their plan for delivering the 
tied projects under the Stronger Communities Fund. Notification is to include 
information on governance arrangements, including costings, timeframes 
(including major delivery milestones) and expected benefits. Councils are to 
advise the OLG of any changes to the delivery plan. 

• Councils are to table progress reports at least quarterly to an ordinary council 
meeting on the expenditure and outcomes within their Stronger Communities 
Fund ongoing reporting. 

• Councils must provide six monthly reports each year by 31 August and 28 
February, to the Office of Local Government on delivery progress and 
expenditure within the Stronger Councils Fund reporting. 

• A final report is to be submitted on the completion of each of the projects, 
including photos and description of the benefits and outcomes achieved. 

• Any interest received from the investment of the funds is to be added to the 
balance of the fund. 

• The Stronger Communities Fund is to be accounted for separately and funds 
should be reported as an internally restricted a·sset within the financial 
statements. 

• Any uncommitted funds by 31 December 2019 must be returned to the OLG by 
31 March 2020. 

9. Acknowledgement 

The funding agreement will specify that funding is conditional on agreement to the 
Funding Acknowledgment Guidelines for Recipients of NSW Government Grants which 
can . be found at https://communications.dpc.nsw.gov.au/assets/dpc-nsw-gov­
au/files/Comm un ications-and-Engagement/fa6fd6d77 a/Funding-Acknowledgement­
Guidelines-for-Recipients-of-N SW-Government-Gra nts.pdf 
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In particular, each Council will abide by the following: 
• Ensure that all public statements relating to the Project or the Grant Funding 

acknowledge the provision of the funding by the NSW Government. 
• Acknowledge the NSW Government's contribution in any written material in 

relation to the project and in any permanent signage in relation to any projects 
funded. 

• Use the NSW Government logo in accordance with the NSW Government Style 
guide in any publicity provisions of any kind (including any brochures, signage, 
advertising and invitations). 

• Issue an invitation to the Minister for Local Government (or nominee) to any 
launch or public event associated with the funding and that where they are able 
to attend, they are acknowledged as official guests. Where practicable, they 
should be afforded the courtesy of publicly addressing the event and opening any 
facility. 

10. Timeframes 

The Stronger Communities Fund allocation must be spent or committed by 31 
December 2019 and fully acquitted by 30 June 2020. Any uncommitted funds by 31 
December 2019 must be returned to the OLG by 31 March 2020. 

Council is to notify the OLG at the earliest time if it will be unable to meet these 
timeframes. Extensions will be considered on a case-by-case basis. 

11. Contacts 

Council's Office of Local Government Council Engagement Manager is available to 
provide advice on the Stronger Communities Fund. 
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ATTACHMENT 3 

Acquittal Certificate 

CERTIFICATION STATEMENT BY GRANT RECIPIENT 

Certification by the General Manager of the grant recipient council 

I, [insert name and position] 

Solemnly and sincerely declare: [DELETE 1 OR 2 AS APPLICABLE] 

1. An amount equal to the total Grant paid $[insert amount] has been expended on the Project in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Funding Agreement dated [insert date] with the 
State of New South Wales represented by the Office of Local Government (OLG). 

OR 

2. The total Grant of $[insert amount] has not been expended. An amount of $[insert amount] has 
not been expended and - [DELETE (a) OR (b) AS APPLICABLE] 

(a) a cheque for this amount made payable to the OLG is attached. 

OR 

(b) An electronic funds transfer for this amount has been transferred into the bank account of 
OLG. 

All funds were expended in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Funding 
Agreement dated [insert date] with the State of New South Wales represented by the OLG; 

AND 

A complete set of accounting and financial records relevant to the Project have been maintained. 

and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true, and by virtue of the 
provisions of the Oaths Act 1900. 

Declared at: .. .. ...... .... .. .. .... ...... . ....... .... . ....... ... on .... .. ....... .. .. .. ... ... ...... ... .. .... .. .... .... .. ... .. .. .... ...... .. . 
{place] {date] 

[signature of declarant] 

in the presence of an authorised witness, who states: 
I, ... ...... ... .......... .. .. .... .. ... ..... ... ... ..... .. ....... ... ...... a .. ....... .. ..... .. ................................... ...... ... ...... ... , 

[name of authorised witness] {qualification of authorised witness] 

certify the following matters concern ing the making of this statutory declaration by the person who made 
it {" please cross out any text that does not apply] 

1. *I saw the face of the person OR *I did not see. the face of the person because the person was 
wearing a face covering, but I am satisfied that the person had a special justification for not removing 
the covering, and 

2. •1 have known the person for at least 12 months OR •1 have confirmed the person 's identity using an 
identification document and the document I relied on was 

[describe identification document relied on] 

[signature of authorised witness] [date] 
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